
 

Agenda - Constitutional and Legislative Affairs 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

Meeting date: 7 May 2019 

Meeting time: 08.30

For further information contact: 

Gareth Williams 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6362  

SeneddCLA@assembly.wales
------ 

1 Introduction, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest 

   

2 Senedd and Elections (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 12 

(8.30-9.15) (Pages 1 - 61)  

Kirsty Williams AM, Minister for Education 

John Pugsley, Head of Subject Support 7-19 Branch, Welsh Government 

 

CLA(5)-14-19 – Research Brief 

CLA(5)-14-19 – Note on school visit 

CLA(5)-14-19 – Note on Comms engagement 

3 Instruments that raise issues to be reported to the Assembly 

under Standing Order 21.2 or 21.3 - previously considered 

(9.15)   

3.1 SL(5)382 - Town and Country Planning (Miscellaneous Amendments) (Wales) 

(EU Exit) Regulations 2019  

 (Pages 62 - 66) 

CLA(5)-14-19 – Paper 1 – Report 

CLA(5)-14-19 – Paper 2 – Updated Government response 

4 Paper(s) to note 

(9.20)   

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



4.1 Letter from the Minister for Housing and Local Government in relation to the 

Law Enforcement and Security (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019  

 (Pages 67 - 68) 

CLA(5)-14-19 – Paper 3 - Letter from Minister for Housing and Local 

Government, 2 May 2019 

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the meeting for the following item 

(9.25)   

6 Senedd and Elections (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence 

(9.25)   

7 Senedd and Elections (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 13 

(9.30-11.00)   

Elin Jones AM, Llywydd and Member in Charge of the Bill 

Anna Daniel, Assembly Commission 

Matthew Richards, Assembly Commission 

8 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the meeting for the following business: 

   

9 Senedd and Elections (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence 

(11.00)   

Date of the next meeting - 13 May 2019  

 



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 34

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



 

SL(5)382 – The Town and Country Planning (Miscellaneous 

Amendments) (Wales) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 

Background and Purpose 

These Regulations make amendments to four statutory instruments related to town and country planning: 

 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992 (S.I.1992/666) (the 

“1992 Regulations”); 

 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 2005 (S.I. 

2005/2839); 

 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 (S.I. 

2012/801); 

 The Planning (Hazardous Substances) (Wales) Regulations 2015 (S.I 2015/1597).  

Regulation 6 contains transitional provision in relation to the 1992 Regulations. 

These Regulations have been made to address failures of retained EU law to operate effectively and other 

deficiencies in retained EU law arising from the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European 

Union.  

Procedure 

Negative. 

Technical Scrutiny 

Four points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in respect of this instrument. 

1. Standing Order 21.2(v) that for any particular reason its form or meaning needs further 

explanation. 

Amendments to the 1992 Regulations are being made in consequence of changes being made by the 

Railway (Licensing of Railway Undertakings) (Amendment etc) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 (the “2019 

Regulations”) to The Railway (Licensing of Railway Undertakings) Regulations 2005. However, the 2019 

Regulations are an affirmative instrument, laid before the UK Parliament on 28th January 2019, but not 

yet made. As such, the amendments rely on the draft as laid on that date. It is unclear what will happen if 

the 2019 Regulations are not made as laid in time for exit day. The Explanatory Memorandum 

accompanying these Regulations does not explain what will happen if the 2019 Regulations are not 

made as expected.  

2. Standing Order 21.2(v) that for any particular reason its form or meaning needs further 

explanation. 

Regulation 5 amends The Planning (Hazardous Substances) (Wales) Regulations 2015, and in places 

makes unspecific references to retained EU law which implements certain EU Directives, but does not 

specify the relevant legislation explicitly. Regulation 5(5) inserts into the definition of “relevant plan or 

programme” the wording “any provision of retained EU law which implemented”. This refers to the 

implementation of Article 13 of Directive 2012/18/EU of the European Parliament and the Council on the 

Pack Page 62

Agenda Item 3.1



 

control of major-accident hazards involving dangerous substances. Similar wording regarding “any 

provision of retained EU law which implemented the EIA Directive” is included in Regulation 6. The 

definition of EIA Directive is inserted by regulation 5(b) of these Regulations (and refers to Directive 

2011/92/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 December 2011 on the assessment of 

the effects of certain public and private projects on the environment, as it had effect immediately before 

exit day).  It would be helpful if references to “any provision of retained EU law…” were more specific, to 

assist the reader in understanding which provisions of retained EU law will be applicable, even if there 

needed to be an additional catch all including, for example, “and any other provision of retained EU 

law…”.  

3. Standing Order 21.2(vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails to fulfil statutory 

requirements.  

The subject heading of the Regulations should include “TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING, WALES” in 

addition to “EXITING THE EUROPEAN UNION, WALES”, to indicate the area of law to which the 

instrument relates.   

4. Standing Order 21.2(vii) that there appear to be inconsistencies between the meaning of the 

English and Welsh texts. 

The English text at regulations 5(2)(a) and (b) and 6(3) does not include corresponding Welsh terms for 

the relevant definitions. The Welsh text includes corresponding English terms in the appropriate place. 

Merits Scrutiny  

Two points is identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.3 in respect of this instrument. 

1. Standing Order 21.3(ii) – that it is of political or legal importance or gives rise to issues of public 

policy likely to be of interest to the Assembly. 

The laid printed version of the Regulations were incorrectly stated to be made by Hannah Blythyn, who is 

described in the laid version as “Minister for Housing and Local Government, one of the Welsh 

Ministers”. This is incorrect, as Hannah Blythyn is the Deputy Minister. We understand that the 

Regulations were correctly made and signed by the Minister, Julie James. However, an administrative 

error has resulted in the wrong name being included on the printed, registered copy, laid before the 

Assembly.   

2. Standing Order 21.3(ii) - that it is of political or legal importance or gives rise to issues of public 

policy likely to be of interest to the Assembly 

A draft of these Regulations was laid before the Assembly for sifting in accordance with paragraph 4 of 

Schedule 7 to the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018. The Committee agreed that the negative 

procedure was the appropriate procedure for these Regulations. 

Implications arising from exiting the European Union  

These Regulations are made in exercise of the powers in the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 to 

address failures of EU law to operate effectively and other deficiencies in EU law arising from the UK’s 

withdrawal from the European Union.  

Pack Page 63



 

Government Response 

The Committee have raised 4 technical points and 2 merits points in relation to these Regulations. Each 

of the technical points will be addressed as well as the first merits point. 

The Committee has identified that these Regulations make amendments to the Town and Country 

Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992 (“the 1992 Regulations”) as a consequence of the 

changes made by the Railway (Licensing of Railway Undertakings) (Amendment etc) (EU Exit) Regulations 

2019 (“the UK Regulations”) to The Railway (Licensing of Railway Undertakings) Regulations 2005. The UK 

Regulations have not yet been made. Welsh Government officials are liaising with Department for 

Transport officials responsible for the UK Regulations as to their passage through both Houses of 

Parliament. Should the UK Regulations not be passed by either House, due to the nature of the 

dependency of these Regulations on the UK Regulations, Welsh Ministers would need to draft a further 

statutory instrument revoking the part of these Regulations which amend the 1992 Regulations. This 

could be done after Exit Day as there would be no legal implications of having those amendments in 

force on Exit Day.  

In relation to the second technical reporting point, we accept that the substituted wording can be 

construed as vague and unhelpful to the reader. During the drafting process, as there was a significant 

suite of other EU Exit instruments being drafted and developed in the EIA sphere, a decision was taken to 

adopt a drafting approach in these Regulations which ensured that all relevant legislation was captured. 

It was preferable to take this approach rather than referring to or listing specific legislation which would 

run the risk of missing something out or, alternatively, capturing something irrelevant. In accordance with 

DExEU Guidance on Retained EU Law, it is the view of Welsh Government Legal Services that this 

deficiency has not been fully remedied and continues to exist after Exit Day. Therefore it is intended to 

make further corrections to the Planning (Hazardous Substances) (Wales) Regulations 2015 by virtue of 

the powers under paragraph 1(1) of Schedule 2 and paragraph 21 of Schedule 7 to the European Union 

(Withdrawal) Act 2018. Such corrections would replace the references to “any provision of retained EU 

law which implemented the EIA Directive” with references to specific provisions of retained EU law, whilst 

still providing an additional catch all provision to allow for the risks highlighted above. 

From a legal perspective, it is now considered that the deficiencies identified and amended by these 

Regulations have now been corrected. Therefore, the powers under paragraph 1(1) to Schedule 2 to the 

European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 to correct deficiencies will not be available to make further 

amendments in the manner in which the Committee has suggested after Exit Day. 

In relation to technical reporting points 3 and 4, these will be corrected by correction slip. 

The Committee raises a merits point relating to the signature on the Regulations. We confirm that it was 

in fact Julie James, Minister for Housing and Local Government who signed the SI and we have provided 

CLAC legal advisers with a scanned copy of that signed SI as confirmation of this. Welsh Government 

officials have since liaised with the SI Registrar to arrange a correction slip for this error and this will be 

published alongside the Regulations. 

We note the second merit reporting point and thank the Committee for their consideration of these 

Regulations as part of the sifting process. 

Pack Page 64



 

Committee Consideration  

The Committee considered the instrument along with the Government response at its meeting on 25 

March 2019 and reports to the Assembly in line with the reporting points identified and also to highlight 

issues as a result on the UK exiting the EU. 

 

Pack Page 65



Updated Government response to CLAC report on the Town and Country 

Planning (Miscellaneous Amendments) (Wales) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 

We recently submitted a response to the Committee in relation to the above 

Regulations. This is an updated response. 

In our original response to the Committee, we addressed the second technical point 

which the Committee made in their report. The point was raised under SO 21.2(v) that 

the form of words needed further explanation. The Committee was concerned that 

phrases such as “any provision of retained EU law which implemented…” was unclear 

and unhelpful to the reader. We accepted this point and committed to making the 

necessary changes to the Regulations by way of a further amending SI. 

However, following further consideration of the amendments to be made and upon 

advice received from the SI Registrar at TNA, we now consider it to be appropriate to 

make the relevant corrections via a corrected re-print of S.I. 2019/456 (W.109). The 

corrected re-print would insert footnotes into the relevant places in the Regulations pin 

pointing the relevant provisions of retained EU law being referred to. A footnote would 

be added to Regulations 5(3)(a), 5(4)(a) and 5(7)(a) to direct the reader to The Town 

and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017 

which implemented Directive 2011/92/EU (defined as “the EIA Directive” in the 

Regulations). A further footnote will be added to Regulation 5(6) directing the reader 

to the Planning (Hazardous Substances) (Wales) Regulations 2015 which 

implemented Directive 2012/18/EU (defined as “the Directive” in the Regulations). 

It should be noted that both an amending SI or in this case, a corrected re-print, would 

achieve the desired outcome of greater clarity to help the reader.  The re-printed WSI 

will be provided free of charge to all known recipients of the original published copy.  

Pack Page 66



Julie James AC/AM 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  
 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  

0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Mick Antoniw AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
National Assembly for Wales  

Tŷ Hywel  
Cardiff Bay  
Cardiff 

CF99 1NA  
 
 
 

2 May 2019 
 
Dear Mick 
 
 
I am writing in regards to an EU Exit SI laid in Parliament, The Law Enforcement and 
Security (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019, to inform you of the reasons why the 
Welsh Ministers gave retrospective consent to this SI. 
 
It came to my attention after the SI was laid that regulation 124 made an amendment of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, which we would consider to be 
within the legislative competence of the National Assembly for Wales. Therefore under the 
Intergovernmental Agreement the consent of the Welsh Ministers should have been sought 
for this SI. My officials discussed this SI with their counterparts in the Home Office, and 
have confirmed that the UK Government did not seek Welsh Ministers consent on the basis 
that the UK Government considers this SI to be reserved. 
 
The provision in question made extremely minor amendments to paragraph 12(1)(c) and (d) 
of Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. Currently the 
Act provides that a licence for a sex establishment (sexual entertainment venues, sex 
cinemas and sex shops) can only be granted to a person resident, or a body corporate that 
has been incorporated, in an EEA state. The amended version will provide that a licence 
can only be granted to a person resident, or a body corporate that has been incorporated in 
the UK or in an EEA state. This is a continuation of the current policy, which is also the 
policy of the Welsh Government. The amendment is a sensible way to continue the existing 
licensing requirements beyond exit day. 
  
For the avoidance of doubt, I wrote to Nick Hurd MP, Minister of State for Police and the 
Fire Service, to give the consent of the Welsh Ministers retrospectively to this SI.  
 
The licensing of the provision of entertainment is reserved to the UK Parliament under the 
Government of Wales Act 2006. However, as the licensing of sex establishments is not 
governed by the Licensing Act 2003, I do not consider that the provision in regulation 124 

Pack Page 67

Agenda Item 4.1

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


would fall within this reservation. As a result, I consider that the consent of the Welsh 
Ministers should have been sought in respect of this provision. 
 
We recognise the unprecedented pressures under which the EU Exit SIs were made, which 
did not allow for the usual time in considering more subjective elements of the devolution 
settlement. On that basis I am content that the UK Government has acted in good faith 
under the Intergovernmental Agreement and has abided by its own interpretation of the 
devolution settlement in this case. Consent was given without prejudice to our position on 
legislative competence and I do not intend to take further action at this stage.  
 
As this SI amends primary legislation within a devolved area, I have laid a Statutory 
Instrument Consent Memorandum in the National Assembly for Wales as required by 
Standing Order 30A (SO30A). However, in light of the extremely minor nature of the 
correction I will not be laying a motion to debate the SICM. It remains open to any member 
to lay a motion for debate under SO30A, should any member feel that a debate is merited 
on this correction. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
 
Julie James AC/AM 

Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  
 

Pack Page 68


	Agenda
	2 Senedd and Elections (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 12
	CLA(5)-14-19 - Note on school visit
	CLA(5)-14-19 – Note on Comms engagement

	3.1 SL(5)382 - Town and Country Planning (Miscellaneous Amendments) (Wales) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019
	CLA(5)-14-19 – Paper 2 – Updated Government response

	4.1 Letter from the Minister for Housing and Local Government in relation to the Law Enforcement and Security (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019

